* - - - . L]

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

. r * L) L) L] L] L] L] L] . . » * *

A Reporting Sem’lce for Emzronmenr and Development Negotiafions

Vol. 12 No. 50

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Friday, 1 August 1997

HIGHLIHTS FROM THE FCCC AD HOC
GROUP ON THE BERLIN MANDATE
31 JULY 1997

The seventh session of the Ad Hoc Group onthe Berlin
Mandate (A GBM) of the Framework Convention on Climate
Change (FCCC) opened on 31 July 1997 in Bonn, Germany. Dele-
gates gave opening statementsin amorning Plenary session and
attended closed meetingsin the afternoon to discussthe topic of
continuing to advance implementation of existing commitmentsin
Article4.1 and quantified emissionslimitation and reduction
objectives (QELROS).

PLENARY

Chair Raul Estrada-Oyuela (Argentina) opened the seventh
session of the AGBM and said that as COP-3 approached, he
remained optimistic despite expected difficulties. He noted that the
G-7+1 meeting in Denver and UNGA SS demonstrated new
interest in climate change problems. He pointed out that, although
some criticized the scope of the Berlin Mandate, AGBM isnot
competent to changeit. Henoted that under FCCC, devel oped
countriescommitted themselvesto takethelead in reducing emis-
sionsand not until this occured, would devel oping countriesbe
ableto assumegreater responsibilities. He acknowledged progress
toward an agreement, and pointed to the EU commitment and
proposal asastep forward. Henoted that two Parties’ definitions
on targetswould be crucial to the process.

FCCC Executive Secretary Michael Zammit-Cutajar indicated
that, at Kyoto, he expected aclear agreement on the understanding
of Annex | country commitmentsunder FCCC. Theresult from
Kyoto should bea“strong punch” against “ businessasusual.” It
should send asignal to thereal economic actorsthat thingswill
changein away that iscompatible both withtheir interestsand
with sustai nable devel opment. It should be possible to monitor
implementation. Although optimistic, he recognized the difficulty
in reducing the proposals on thetableto the sort of signal he
described. He urged delegationsto enter into anegotiating mode
proving that they are ableto go beyond “playing with text.”

TANZANIA, on behalf of the G-77/CHINA, said that the basis
for action and for an agreement must be strict adherenceto the
Convention and to the Berlin Mandate. Heindicated that an agree-
ment entail ed advancing commitmentsfor Annex | Parties, while
avoiding new onesfor non-Annex | Parties. Hereferred to
UNGA SSoutcomes, highlighting that in addition to establishing
targets, therewaswidespread agreement that it will be necessary to
achievethem taking into account the adverse effects of response
measureson al countries, especially the devel oping countries.

IPCC Chair Bert Bolin remarked on the Second A ssessment
Report, which statesthat “ the bal ance of evidence suggestsa
discernible human influence on global climate.” He stated that
enhanced GHG concentrations correspond to achangein global
mean temperature of 0.7-2.1°C, but arelimited to 0.2-1.1°C by
aerosol concentrationsand climate systeminertia. He stated that
global warming for thefull range of IPCC emission scenariosand
climate sensitivitieswasestimated to bein therange 1.0-3.5° C by
theyear 2100. He noted that recent analysis showsthat Annex |

countrieswereresponsiblefor 64% of thetotal CO2 emissionsin
1996, down from 75% in 1985. Although most of theincreased
emissionsstem from non-Annex | countries, they will not reach
50% of thetotal emissionsuntil at least 15-20 yearsfrom now. He
noted that stabilization of CO2 inthelong-term requireseffortsby
all countries. He stated the efficient use of energy isthe primeand
most obvious short-term measureto be considered both by Annex |
and non-Annex | countries.

LUXEMBOURG, on behalf of the EU, recalled its proposal
that “ Annex X" Parties, individually or jointly, in accordance with
the Berlin Mandate, should reduce emission levelsfor CO2, CH4
and N20 together (weighted total, using Global Warming Potential
with a 100-year time horizon) by 2005 by at |east 7.5% below 1990
levels. Heal so proposed that HFC, PFC and SF6 should be added
no later than 2000 to the“ basket” of gasesfor these reduction
objectives. He said that devel oped countries must face up to their
responsibilitiesand takethelead. However, all Partiesmust realize
that inthelonger term anincreasingly global effort isneededto
tackletheissue.

BRAZIL summarizeditsproposa (FCCC/AGBM/1997/
MISC.1/Add.3) by calling for adirect and objectivelink to be
established between the annual rate of GHG emissionsand the
increasein globa mean surfacetemperature. He proposed that
reduction targets be established in terms of temperature change. He
called for the establishment of amechanism to guaranteethat non-
Annex | countriesaddress climate change. Hecalled for the devel-
opment of quantitativetargetsfor non-Annex | countriesasthey
reach appropriate levelsof well-being. He proposed that the Clean
Development Fund receive mandatory contributionsfrom Annex |
Partiesin proportion to their overall non-compliance. He noted
four pointsof negotiation: reduction targetsof Annex | Parties
expressed intemperature change; time of performancereview for
Annex | countries; initial year of consideration for historical emis-
sions; and value of assessed contribution to the Clean Devel opment
Fund. Herequested that the proposal beformally submitted to the
COP-3.

ZIMBABWE, for the African Group, expressed hopethat the
AGBM will accel erate the negotiating process and reach agree-
ment by the end of the next session. She noted that African coun-
triesare often marginalized by theinterim funding mechanism
process. She expressed concern with thelack of progressmadein
political deliberationsand urged that the policiesand measures
(P& Ms) and quantified emissionslimitation and reduction objec-
tiveswithin specified timeframes (QELROSs) contain provisions
for socio-economicimpact assessments. She noted that any deci-
sion reached should not increase the soci o-economic and environ-
mental burdens placed on Africa. She stated that an agreement
should include commitment of financial resources and technolo-
giesfor African countries.

TheRUSSIAN FEDERATION said the outcome should go
through the same ratification process asthe Convention and that
CO2 reductiontargets must be considered alongside goalsfor
removal. SLOVENIA signaleditspreparationto eventually join
Annex | Partiesin complying withlegally binding commitments
and supported an EU proposal for GHG reductions.

Thisissueof the Earth NegotiationsBulletin <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by PaolaBettelli <paobe@sprynet.com>, Chad Carpenter, LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Peter
Doran <PF.Doran@ul st.ac.uk>, Benjamin Simmons <bls23@columbia.edu> and Steve Wise <swise@igc.apc.org>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>
and the Managing Editor is Langston James Kimo Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>.The sustaining donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry for Development
Cooperation and the Government of Canada. General support for the Bulletin during 1997 is provided by the Department for International Development (DI D) of the United
Kingdom, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Denmark, the European Community (DG-XI), the German Ministry of Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety,
the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the Swiss Federal Office of the Environment, and UNDP. ENB can
be contacted at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. -11 SD can be contacted at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada; tel: +1-
204-958-7700; fax: +1-204-958-7710. Excerptsfrom the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in other publications only with appropriate citation. Electronic versions of
the ENB are sent to e-mail distribution listsand can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages.




Vol. 12, No. 50- 1 August 1997

Page 2

TheUSsaid the AGBM agreement must
maintain legally binding targets, provide maximum flexibility,
include credibleand realisticlevels, include mechanismsfor
national complianceand involveall countries. Hesaid it was not
possibleto decidewhat kind of numerical target might be under-
taken without knowing what constraintswould beimposed on such
atarget. The UShadintroduced proposals on emissionstrading,
joint implementation, abudget process and abanking processto
increaseflexibility and reduce costs. Inthisregard he outlined two
new proposals, which he said arecritical in determining the agree-
ment structure. He explained that alegally binding agreement
would require acompliance mechanism to which flexibility
concepts could be added, although these were currently tinged with
some political heat. Hea so called for acomprehensive approach
including all GHGs, sources, sectorsand sinks. Where countries
failed to usethe enabling | PCC methodol ogy to adopt such an
approach they should be penalized. On all-country participation, he
called for animproved definition of Article4.1 andthe Berlin
Mandate. Whilethereisadifference between Annex | and non-
Annex | countriesit was unreasonabl e to expect that therewas
nothing to be done between the Annex | and non-Annex | commit-
ments. To addressthisthe US had proposed some middleground.
TheUS proposal includesarecommendation for along-term
processtoward the obj ective of the Conventionincluding all coun-
triesand seeking evolution. A new negotiation would certainly
follow the AGBM and within that timeframeall countries must
participate.

UZBEKISTAN said the countriesin transition requireinvest-
ment in new technologies. SAUDI ARABIA addressed contradic-
tionsin Annex | policies, such asincreased fossil fuel production
by devel oped countriesin the event of lower consumption, leading
tolower imports, and subsidies provided to somefossil fuel sectors
whiletaxing theuse of other fossil fuels. He asked for considera-
tion of compensation in the event of negative economicimpactson
some States.

The Chair outlined the organization of work (Item 2(b)) and
introduced documentation, including the main negotiating text
compiled at AGBM-6 (FCCC/AGBM/1997/3/Add.1) and
proposalsfrom Partiesreceived after AGBM-6 (FCCC/AGBM/
1997/MISC.1/Add.2,3,4, and 5). The Chair stated that delegates
would meet in closed sessionsin the afternoon; continuing to
advanceimplementation of existingcommitmentsin Article4.1,
chaired by EvansKing (Trinidad and Tobago); and QELROS,
chaired by Luiz Gylvan MeiraFilho (Brazil). Closed non-group
sessionson Article4.1 will continueon Friday. A non-group on
institutions, mechanismsand other clauses, chaired by Takao
Shibata (Japan) will begin on Friday. Briefingsfor observerswill
beheld each morning.

The Chair invited anumber of Partieswith new proposalsto
make presentations. JAPAN called for: aSBSTA study onthe
removal of carbon dioxideviasinksbeforetheissueistakenup
under QELROS; areview processto reflect thelatest science; and
for linkage between entry into force of an agreement and thetotal
aggregate emissionsof ratifying countries.

GEORGIA called for improved financial mechanismsfor the
energy sector and to encourage private sector participationin Al J.

SAMOA, forthe ALLIANCE OF SMALL ISLAND STATES,
outlined proposalsto fully reflect the precautionary principleinthe
work of the AGBM. He said aguiding objective of the AGBM
agreement should beto ensurethat global sealevel riseresulting
from climate change does not exceed 20 cm above 1990 levels, and
that the average global temperature does not exceed 2°C abovethe
pre-industrial level.

IN THE CORRIDORS

NON-GROUP ON ARTICLE 4.1 (COMMITMENTS): In
the non-group meeting on Article 4.1, delegates agreed to negotiate
onthebasisof apaper proposed by Chair EvansKing (Trinidad and
Tobago). Thefirst four paragraphs of the chapeau werediscussed,
which refer to advancing theimplementation of commitmentsand
the Berlin Mandate. Some non-Annex | countriesreportedly sought
toincludereferencesto the Berlin Mandate a ong with anumber of
other elementsfrom the FCCC, including aspecific referenceto no
new non-Annex | commitments, but some Annex | countries
objected. Some delegationswerereluctant toincludeareferenceto
the principle of common but differentiated responsibilities. There
were proposal sto del ete paragraphsthat conditioned advancement
of commitments by non-Annex | Partieson the provision of finan-
cial resourcesand transfer of technol ogy by developed countries.
Onedeveloped country put forward an alternative draft paper that
would commit Partiesto advanceimplementation of Article4.1
andto astrengthen collaboration.

NON-GROUP ON QELROS: Thefirst meeting of the non-
group on QELROS, chaired by Luiz Gylvan MeiraFilho (Brazil),
considered two questions: which greenhouse gases (GHGs) to
includein the agreement and whether to adopt agrossor net
approach. A draft paper isto be produced to reflect thetwo main
arguments put forward regarding the gross approach. On the ques-
tion of which GHGs areto be covered, agroup of devel oped
country favored a“ basket” approach while other devel oped coun-
tries supported theinclusion of al gases. The possibility of
amending aprotocol or legal instrument over timeto bring new
gasesinto the agreement wasraised, aswastheaternative
approach of dealing with sources of gasesrather than the gases
themselves. The Chair’ sdraft text isexpected for the next meeting.
Another approach would reportedly addressall gasesbut adopt a
schedulefor tackling different GHGs over time.

THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
OBSERVER BRIEFING: A briefing for observersis sched-
uledfor 9:45am.
NON-GROUP SESSIONS:
Thenon-group on Article4.1 will meet at 10:00am and 1:00pm.

The non-group oninstitutions, mechanisms, and other elements
will meet at 10:00am.

Thenon-group on QELROswill reconvene at 3:00pm.
AGBM: AGBM isscheduled to meet Monday at 10:00 am.



